
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, November 22, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  
   Approval of Minutes 

 November 15, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
   Review Agenda 

 
Consent Agenda  

       
Auditor 
a. Surplus of Personal Property  
Building 
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000 
Commissioners  
c. Step Increase Approval  
d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0133-101, Dept. 000 
e. Non-Bargaining Contribution to Employee Insurance Benefits for 2017 
Facilities 
f. Payment to Perfection Glass for Window Replacement 
Human Services  
g. Agreement w/Community Action Committee for Ten Year Homeless Housing Plan 
Information Technology 
h.  Purchase of Microsoft Surface Pro 4 for Human Services Dept. & Surface Book Tablet for 

Public Works  
Office of Public Defense 
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136 
Personnel 
j. Salary Request Statement  
k. Establishing Principal Planner Classification Description in Planning Department 
Pest Board 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 105-101, Dept. 000 
Planning 
m. Contract w/S Drummond for Hearings Examiner Services  
Public Safety 
n. Contract w/Boys & Girls Club for Prosser Teen Program Investment    

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 
November 22, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

o. Coding Corrections, Dept. 138 
p. Coding Corrections, Dept. 138 
Public Works 
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650 
r. Purchase from Northend Truck Equipment, Inc. for Specialized Parts 
s. Purchase of Ford Escape from Corwin Ford Tri-Cities  
t. Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Big D’s Construction  
u. Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Premier Excavation  
v. Payment to Cascade Software Systems, Inc. for Programming Services 
w. Purchase from House of Automotive Parts & Paint for Tooling Equipment 
x. Contract w/Roadtech, Inc. for Crushing Demonstration Project on Missimer Road 
y. Purchase from Mohawk Resources LTD for Hunter Alignment System 
Sheriff 
z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  
aa. Contract w/Mel’s Inter City Collision, Inc. for Towing Services 
bb. Contract w/Pronto Process Service, Inc. for Process Services  
Superior Court 
cc. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 
dd. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 
ee. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 to 123 
ff. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 
Treasurer 
gg. Agreement Extension w/The Master’s Touch for Printing/Mailing Property Tax Statements 

 
Scheduled Business  
 
Board Assignments for 2017 ~ Commissioners 
 
Continued 2017 - 2018 Public Safety Budget Discussion ~ L Smith Kelty 
 
Continued 2017 – 2018 Budget Discussion ~ D Sparks 
 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    
   

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 15, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 
Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 
Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court 
Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Assessor Bill Spencer; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Superior Court 
Administrator Pat Austin; Superior Court Judge Cameron Mitchell; District Court Judge Terry 
Tanner; Deputy Treasurer Erhiza Rivera; Tara Symons, Mental Health Court Coordinator; Clark 
Posey; Fred Bowen, Public Services Administrator; IT Manager Teri Holmes; District Court Judge 
Katy Butler.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the October 27, 2016 Budget Workshop and November 8, 2016 Board Meeting 
were approved.   
 
Review Agenda 
 
Commissioner Beaver requested item “g” be pulled for discussion.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “q” 
pulling “g” (Public Safety Tax Line Item Transfer).  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon 
vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Animal Control 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
Commissioners  

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 111 
  



 - 2 - 

Human Services  
c. Homeless Grant Amendment B w/WA State Dept. of Commerce, Community Services & 

Housing Division  
Office of Public Defense 

d. Revised Juvenile Terminated Contract w/P Peterson 
e. Agreement w/WA State Office of Public Defense for Public Defense Grant Funding 

Parks 
f. Contract w/Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc. for Shelter Structure @ Two Rivers 

Park   
Public Safety 

h. Coding Corrections Between Public Safety Tax Fund & Current Expense Fund   
i. Copier Lease Agreement w/Xerox Corporation for Mental Health Court  

Public Works 
j. Petition to Vacate Portion of Wheat Road & Setting Public Hearing  

Sheriff 
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120    
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120   
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000 
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 to Dept. 119 
o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 to Dept. 118 
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 

Superior Court 
q. Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts for Court Interpreter 

Funding 
 
Item “g” Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 120 
 
Commissioner Beaver said he was concerned about transferring money from a booking clerk 
position to an inmate processing specialist and they needed to be very careful with the public safety 
tax and how they moved money around.  He read the ballot measure to the Board and said there 
was nothing in that ballot that referenced inmate processing specialist.  He said it was previously 
approved so the money would be moved but wanted to remind everyone how they said the money 
would be spent. 
 
Commissioner Delvin said his point was well taken. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the line item transfer as presented.  
Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried with Commissioner Beaver 
opposing. 
 
Public Hearings – Certify and Adopt Taxes  
 
Ms. Smith Kelty said she had four resolutions for the Board to approve.  
 
  



 - 3 - 

Declaration of Substantial Need – Setting the Limit Factor  
 
She said the first one was different in that the Board needed to establish substantial need since the 
implicit price deflator was below 1% and this would allow them to take .953 percent and bank the 
remainder. 
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the resolution making a declaration of 
substantial need for purposes of setting the limit factor for the regular property tax levy for 2017.  
Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Certifying Current Expense Levy for 2017 Collection 
 
Ms. Smith Kelty said this resolution would certify the current expense levy and did not change the 
levy rate.  
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the resolution certifying the current expense 
levy for 2017 collection.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
County Road Levy for 2017 Collection  
 
Ms. Smith Kelty said in this instance, the Board was banking the entire amount to ensure adequate 
funding in future years.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the resolution certifying the County Road 
levy for 2017 collection.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Certifying Budgeted Taxes for Collection in the Year 2017 for Benton County 
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the resolution certifying budgeted taxes for 
collection in the year 2017 for Benton County.  Commissioner Beaver seconded. 
 
Discussion 
 
Commissioner Beaver commented that all year-long people talk about taxes, but no one shows up 
to the public hearing.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 



 - 4 - 

Request to Seek Bids 
 
Fred Bowen presented the following projects for approval: 
 
Hazardous Material Abatement/Rehabilitation - Courthouse 
 

 Old Engineering Building – hazardous materials abatement - $68,000 
 Courthouse Windows – removal of lead paint only - $148,000 (painting would be a separate 

bid) 
 Main Entrance Floors and Staircase Rehab - $95,000 
 

Commissioner Beaver asked about removing the windows and putting in new ones versus 
repainting.  Mr. Bowen said he could check into it, but generally on historic buildings there were 
restrictions relating to grants.    
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Public Services Administrator to seek 
bids from qualified contractors for the removal of all hazardous materials on the Engineering 
Building, Courthouse Windows and the rehabilitation on the Main Entrance floors and staircase, 
contingent upon a cost estimate for brand new windows and what effect it would have on historic 
building grants.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Fairgrounds – Buildings 2 and 3 
 
Mr. Bowen said he was seeking approval to send the plan drawings out for bid once the City 
completed their plan review.   
 
Estimated cost - $1,941,000 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the Public Services Administrator to proceed 
with the bidding process for the renovation of Buildings 2 and 3 at the Fairgrounds.  Commissioner 
Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Public Safety Tax Budget - Discussion 
 
Ms. Smith Kelty said she wanted to update the Board and highlight the requests.   
 
Clerk - asking for ½ time FTE.  This was not a new request; it already existed and currently did 
scanning.  
 
District Court – not asking for anything above and beyond. 
 
Mental Health Court - current capacity of 40 cases; requests included services to grow to a 70-75 
case docket and a salary increase for the program manager.  
 



 - 5 - 

Commissioner Delvin asked about the incentives and Ms. Smith Kelty said there was a policy 
being put together and was being reviewed in legal but had been taken out of the budget until 
approved by the Board. 
 
There was a discussion regarding the current amount of participants (33) and that they were 
averaging 17 referrals a month.  Judge Butler said they wanted to have the ability to take more 
people but could not due to staffing and would not be able to expand the program without the 
requests being approved.  Ms. Symons said they had good momentum and great community 
support.   
 
Judge Butler said that incentives were a part of every mental health court in the state and the other 
counties were tax based and they all had incentives.  She said that removing it would put the 
program in jeopardy; it would be detrimental and was a critical part of mental health court. 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he did not want it to come into question down the road and his concern 
was gifting of public funds.  He said he did not have a problem with incentives but just wanted to 
make sure they were within the law.   
 
David Sparks commented that some of the other mental health courts were approved by the mental 
health tax.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said they needed to have a pretty concrete policy; this program was new 
and they would get there but they wanted to be very careful about how the money was being spent. 
 
Judge Butler said they were modeled after Spokane County and their incentive line item was 
$25,000 per year.   
 
Judge Butler said the salary increase was also not included in the budget.  She said if there was 
another process, they could correct that but they needed that money in there and could take care of 
it by doing it correctly.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:55 a.m. 
 
Non-departmental - no requests.   
 
Prosecuting Attorney - asking for a treatment attorney.  
 
Sheriff Custody – requests included the re-directional program and mental health professional 
position for the jail.   
 
Sheriff Patrol – request for supplies and vehicles.  
 
Metro – limited supplies and one vehicle.   
 
Superior Court – asking for ½ FTE court commissioner.  Ms. Austin talked to Franklin County 
and they did not say no but were not adverse to the idea.   



 - 6 - 

Public Safety Administration – asking for limited operating supplies. 
 
Office of Public Defense – asking for 1 FTE and ½ FTE contract attorney.   
 
Commissioner Delvin asked about hiring someone to complete screenings to determine if a person 
was truly indigent. He said he was willing to hire someone for a year for screening purposes and 
would propose that instead of hiring additional attorneys.  He said that when filings were down in 
other courts, but his were up, it did not make sense.  The Board agreed with this concept.  Ms. 
Smith Kelty said she would work with Mr. Hsu and bring back the information for the next round. 
 
Adult & Juvenile Drug Court – nothing above and beyond. 
 
Juvenile – same.   
 
2017-2018 Budget Discussion - Continued 
 
Mr. Sparks said he had worked with the departments and they were ready to go to public hearing 
with (60,131) to balance.   
 
He said that $1.1 million was moved from the Sheriff’s office to the 3/10 Public Safety Tax and it 
was a key element of the Current Expense budget that needed to be identified before next Tuesday.   
 
Other Business 
 
Commissioner Beaver commented that he and Commissioner Small toured the LIGO facility.   
 
Commissioners Delvin and Beaver congratulated each other on the election.   
 
Chairman Small congratulated Duane Davidson on being elected to Washington State Treasurer.   
 
Payroll 
 
Check Date 11/04/2016 
 
Payroll Checks 
Warrants #240063-240136 
Direct Deposit #: 118641-119245 
Total all funds $2,228,750.04 
 
Payroll Deductions/Transfers 
Taxes #: 101161101-101161116 
Total all funds $1,905,078.23 
 
Payroll Deductions/Warrants 
Warrant #: 147790-147802 
Total all funds:  $366,155.19 



 - 7 - 

 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2016-880: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
2016-881: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 111 
2016-882: Homeless Grant Amendment B w/WA State Dept. of Commerce, Community 

Services & Housing Division  
2016-883: Revised Juvenile Terminated Contract w/P Peterson 
2016-884: Agreement w/WA State Office of Public Defense for Public Defense Grant Funding 
2016-885: Contract w/Northwest Playground Equipment, Inc. for Shelter Structure @ Two 

Rivers Park   
2016-886: Coding Corrections Between Public Safety Tax Fund & Current Expense Fund   
2016-887: Copier Lease Agreement w/Xerox Corporation for Mental Health Court  
2016-888: Petition to Vacate Portion of Wheat Road & Setting Public Hearing  
2016-889: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120    
2016-890: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120   
2016-891: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0116-101, Dept. 000 
2016-892: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 to Dept. 119 
2016-893: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 to Dept. 118 
2016-894: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 
2016-895: Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts for Court Interpreter 

Funding 
2016-896: Line Item Transfer, Fund 0148-101, Dept. 120 
2016-897: Declaration of Substantial Need – Setting the Limit Factor for the Regular Property 

Tax Levy for 2017 
2016-898: Certifying the Current Expense Levy for 2017 Collection  
2016-899: Certifying the County Road Levy for 2017 Collection  
2016-900: Certifying Budgeted Taxes for Collection in 2017 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:06 
a.m. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, several County departments request supply and 

equipment items be declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly.  

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: November 22, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: V. Pettey / B. Chilton Other      Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager and maintains an updated 
inventory listing of County Personal Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Information Technology departmetn and the Auditor’s office have identified supply 
items and equipment which have become obsolete; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and the Information 
Technology department and the Auditor’s office that the listed property be declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and as 
supported by the Information Technology department and the Auditor’s office, the listed property in 
Attachment A is hereby determined to be surplus and will be held for online auction, the next surplus 
sale, disposed of as waste, or recycled depending on final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  
  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

Department Type Tag Serial 

Number 

Service ID Make Description 

AS - Assessor printer 18323 CNCCBC10TL G8T1US2734A5 HP LaserJet 

CP3525dn 

ID - Indigent 

Defense 

printer 17774 MY946CK2VJ G62CUSE2CE27 HP DeskJet 6940 

IT - Information 

Technology 

net 15176 SG13201688 
 

HP ProCurve 

Switch 

4000M 

IT - Information 

Technology 

printer 12110 
  

HP DJ960c 

IT - Information 

Technology 

printer 14812 SCNC3051366 
 

HP LaserJet 

1200 

IT - Information 

Technology 

printer 17639 JPDF217205 G97MUS0D3CD0 HP LaserJet 

P4015dn 

PA - 

Prosecuting 

Attorney 

printer 17176 JPRL84P0FK G086US019BEF HP LaserJet 

9040n 

SH - Sheriff - 

Administration 

printer 18938 VNB3R02618 GAL5US4CC91B HP LaserJet 

P3015dn 

SH - Sheriff - 

Administration 

scanner 19817 730030 
 

Fujitsu fi-6130z 

       

 
 
Four green reception chairs – Auditor’s office 



WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000







WEH
Text Box
c. Step Increase Approval



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
1/10% CJ JAIL-JUVENILE FUND NUMBER 0133-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER
000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0133-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
523.200 4189 Contingency $26,509 594.230 6206 Mental Health Jail Expansion $26,509

TOTAL $26,509 TOTAL $26,509
Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  10-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to pay for the Contructability Review (2016-736) done on the Mental Health Jail Expansion.

No Department

1/10% CJ Jail-Juvenile

000

0133-101



cc:  All Departments, Payroll and Personnel  SPARKS 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING A NON-BARGAINING CONTRIBUTION TO 
EMPLOYEE INSURANCE BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR 2017 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners has determined that the non-
bargaining contribution to employee benefits will be adjusted for calendar year 2017; 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners has determined that 
the County’s monthly contribution for regular benefited non-bargaining employees and 
elected officials eligible for benefits will increase from $1,133.60 per month to $1,138.60 
per month effective January 1, 2017; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is mandatory that benefited eligible employees 
and elected officials be enrolled in the County’s medical, dental, vision and life 
($24,000.00) insurance plans, to receive the monthly County contribution; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any unused portion of the County contribution 
available above the mandated County’s medical, dental, vision and life plan premiums may 
be applied to the purchase of supplemental group insurance, dependent coverage with any 
remainder deposited into the employee’s VEBA account; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that provisions in any prior resolution on this subject, 
are superseded by similar provisions in this resolution and this resolution may be rescinded 
or modified, at the sole discretion of the Board of Benton County Commissioners without 
notification; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution is not intended nor shall it be 
interpreted as limiting or compromising the County’s “at will” employer status. 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
e. Non-Bargaining Contribution to Employee Insurance Benefits for 2017



WEH
Text Box
f. Payment to Perfection Glass for Window Replacement









WEH
Text Box
g. Agreement w/Community Action Committee for Ten Year Homeless Housing Plan













  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

Human Services has requested the purchase of a Microsoft Surface Pro 4 and Surface Pro Type 
Cover keyboard.   Human Services department has funding available in the 2015-2016 biennium 
budget for this purchase.   

Public Works has requested the purchase of a Microsoft Surface Book and Surface Book 
Docking Station to replace a unit was damaged beyond repair.   Public Works department has 
funding available in the 2015-2016 biennium budget for this purchase.   

 
 
SUMMARY  

Benton County Information Technology utilizing Washington State Contract pricing secured a 
quote for the Microsoft Surface Pro 4 and Microsoft Surface Book and accessories requested.  

RECOMMENDATION  

Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the purchase for Human 
Services of a Microsoft Surface Pro 4 and accessories in an amount not to exceed $1399.00 
excluding Washington State Sales Tax and the purchase for Public Works of a Microsoft Surface 
Book and accessories in an amount not to exceed $1692.00 excluding Washington State Sales 
Tax.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

   None.  To be paid for by Human Services and Public Works directly.  
 
MOTION  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         
Meeting Date: November 22, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda X   
Subject: Authorize purchase of a 

Microsoft Surface Pro 4 and 
Microsoft Surface Book plus 
accessories Pass Resolution  X   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance     1st Discussion    
By: Teri L. Holmes Pass Motion     2nd Discussion     
Reviewed By:   Other     Other      
                    

WEH
Text Box
h. Purchase of Microsoft Surface Pro 4 for Human Services Dept. & Surface Book Tablet for Public Works



Orig: Information Technology  
cc: Auditor,  

Prepared by: T. Holmes 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE MICROSOFT SURFACE 
PRO 4, MICROSOFT SURFACE PRO 4 TYPE COVER FOR USE BY HUMAN SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT AND ONE MICROSOFT SURFACE BOOK AND DOCKING STATION  FOR 
USE BY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT. 
 
WHEREAS, The Human Services department has a need for a traveling laptop device and 
has requested a Microsoft Surface Pro 4 with Microsoft Type Cover Keyboard as a solution; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The Public Works department has an unfortunate event with a mobile device and 
the device was damaged beyond repair.  Public Works has requested a Microsoft Surface 
Book and Docking Station as a replacement solution; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.6 of the Computer Replacement policy requires all new computer  
equipment receive approval by the Board of Benton County Commissioners before 
purchasing; and 
 
WHEREAS, Both Human Services and Public Works have funds available in the current 
biennial budget to make this purchase; and 
 
WHEREAS, Information Technology requested quotes from Southern Computer Warehouse 
utilizing Washington State Contract pricing and recommends the purchase; NOW 
THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby concurs with Information Technology’s selection and approves the purchase of a 
Microsoft Surface Pro 4 and Type Cover in an amount not to exceed $1,399.00 excluding 
Washington State Sales Tax to be paid for by Human Services and a Microsoft Surface Book 
Tablet and Docking Station in an amount not to exceed $1,692.00 excluding Washington 
State Sales Tax to be paid for by Public Works.  
 
 
Dated this  day of  ,   
  
  
 Chairman of the Board 
  
  
 Member 
  
  
 Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington
 Clerk of the Board  
 



 

Southern Computer Warehouse 
1395 S. Marietta Parkway
Building 300
Marietta, Georgia 30067
United States
http://www.scw.com
(P) 877-GOTOSCW 
(F) 770.579.8937 
 

Date
Nov 04, 2016 03:36 PM
EDT

Quotation  (Open)

Doc #
1610000  - rev 1 of 1

Description
Microsoftr Surface Book

SalesRep
Hart,  Alex 
(P) 770-579-8927 

Customer Contact
Holmes,  Teri 
(P) 509.786.5603 
Teri.Holmes@co.benton.wa.us 

 
Customer 
Benton County WA (A11627) 
Holmes, Teri
620 Market Street
Prosser, WA 99350
United States
(P) 509-786-5603 
 

Bill To 
Benton County WA
Services, Central
PO Box 608
Prosser, WA 99350
United States
(P) 509-786-5603 
teri.holmes@co.benton.wa.us
 

Ship To 
Benton County WA
20160929-T6, REF
620 Market Street
Info Tech
Prosser, WA 99350
United States
 

 

Customer PO: Terms:
Undefined

Ship Via:
GROUND

Special Instructions: Carrier Account #:

 
# Description Part # Qty Unit Price Total
1
 

Microsoft Surface Book 
Tablet - with detachable keyboard - Core i5 6300U / 2.4 GHz - Win 10 Pro 64-bit - 8 GB RAM -
128 GB SSD - 13.5" touchscreen 3000 x 2000 - HD Graphics 520 - Wi-Fi - silver - kbd: English -
North America - commercial 

SV7-
00001 

1 $1,402.73 $1,402.73 

 Note:  This item is a special order and is non-returnable per the manufacturer, unless DOA or defective.
2
 

Case Logic 14.1" Laptop and iPad Slim Case 
Notebook carrying case - 14.1" - black - for Apple iPad (3rd generation); iPad 2 

AUA-
314-
BLACK 

1 $17.99 $17.99 

3
 

Microsoft Surface Book 
Tablet - with detachable keyboard - Core i7 6600U / 2.6 GHz - Win 10 Pro 64-bit - 16 GB RAM -
512 GB SSD - 13.5" touchscreen 3000 x 2000 - GF 940M - Wi-Fi - silver - kbd: English - North
America - commercial 

SW6-
00001 

1 $2,414.37 $2,414.37 

 

Quote valid for 30 days unless formal bid provides different term.
Promotional pricing is valid only during term of promotion and
while supplies last.

All returns must be authorized and clearly marked with a valid
RMA number. RMA's are subject to restock fees when applicable.
These prices may not include applicable taxes, insurance,
shipping, delivery, setup fees, or any cables or cabling services or
material unless specifically listed above.

Please note that expedited shipping charges are estimated, and
could decrease or increase when invoiced.

All prices are subject to change without notice. Supply subject to
availability.
 

Subtotal: $3,835.09
Tax (8.600%): $329.82

Shipping: $0.00
Total: $4,164.91

 



 

Southern Computer Warehouse 
1395 S. Marietta Parkway
Building 300
Marietta, Georgia 30067
United States
http://www.scw.com
(P) 877-GOTOSCW 
(F) 770.579.8937 
 

Date
Oct 13, 2016 03:26 PM
EDT

Quotation  (Open)

Doc #
1603200  - rev 1 of 1

Description
Surface Pro 4/Type Cover

SalesRep
Hart,  Alex 
(P) 877-468-6729 
(F) 770-579-8937

Customer Contact
Holmes,  Teri 
(P) 509.786.5603 
Teri.Holmes@co.benton.wa.us 

 
Customer 
Benton County WA (A11627) 
Holmes, Teri
620 Market Street
Prosser, WA 99350
United States
(P) 509-786-5603 
 

Bill To 
Benton County WA
Services, Central
620 Market Street
Prosser, WA 99350
United States
(P) 509-786-5603 
teri.holmes@co.benton.wa.us
 

Ship To 
Benton County WA
REF#, ATTN
620 Market Street
Prosser, WA 99350
United States
 

 

Customer PO: Terms:
Undefined

Ship Via:
GROUND

Special Instructions: Carrier Account #:

 
# Description Part # Qty Unit Price Total
1
 

Microsoft Surface Pro 4 
Tablet - no keyboard - Core i5 6300U / 2.4 GHz - Win 10 Pro 64-bit - 8 GB RAM - 256 GB SSD -
12.3" touchscreen 2736 x 1824 - HD Graphics 520 - Wi-Fi - silver - commercial 

7AX-
00001 

1 $1,192.72 $1,192.72 

2
 

Microsoft Surface Pro 4 Type Cover 
Keyboard - English - North American layout - black - commercial 

R9Q-
00001 

1 $94.74 $94.74 

 

Quote valid for 30 days unless formal bid provides different term.
Promotional pricing is valid only during term of promotion and
while supplies last.

All returns must be authorized and clearly marked with a valid
RMA number. RMA's are subject to restock fees when applicable.
These prices may not include applicable taxes, insurance,
shipping, delivery, setup fees, or any cables or cabling services or
material unless specifically listed above.

Please note that expedited shipping charges are estimated, and
could decrease or increase when invoiced.

All prices are subject to change without notice. Supply subject to
availability.
 

Subtotal: $1,287.46
Tax (8.600%): $110.72

Shipping: $0.00
Total: $1,398.18

 



WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136





WEH
Text Box
j. Salary Request Statement



 cc: Personnel, Auditor’s Office, Planning                                         Prepared by: L. Wingfield 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 11/22/2016     
Subject:              Establish the Principal 

Planner classification 
description 

Prepared by:       L. Wingfield 
 

 
TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 
Execute Contract 
Pass Resolution     X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion 
Other   

 
 
Consent Agenda    X 
Public Hearing             
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion             
Other              

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Public Services Administrator worked with the Personnel Manager to create a Principal Planner 
classification description for the Planning Department.  The Personnel Manager recommends a job 
classification description and placement on the salary schedule for a Principal Planner.  The Personnel 
Manager has created the job description attached to this resolution and recommends placement on the 
Benton County Non-Bargaining salary schedule grade 18. 
 
This position will replace the vacant Senior Planner, 0000101.116.00000.558.600.1327. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
See above. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend approving the Principal Planner job classification description and its placement as a grade 
18 on the Benton County Non-Bargaining salary schedule. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No supplement required. 
 

WEH
Text Box
k. Establishing Principal Planner Classification Description in Planning Department



 cc: Personnel, Auditor’s Office, Planning                                         Prepared by: L. Wingfield 
 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ESTABLISHING A PRINCIPAL PLANNER CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 
AND SALARY GRADE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Services Administrator has brought to the attention of the Personnel Resources 
Department that there is a need to create a Principal Planner classification description; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager created a job classification description for a Principal Planner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager reviewed current Benton County job classification’s placement on 
the Benton County Non-Bargaining salary schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal Planner will replace the vacant Senior Planner, positions number PLN1327-
001; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, hereby approves the recommended 
Principal Planner classification description and its placement on the Benton County Non-Bargaining 
salary schedule at a grade 18; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners retains the right to 
modify or repeal this determination at their discretion and without prior notification; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution is not intended nor shall be interpreted as limiting or 
compromising the County’s “at will” employer status; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Principal Planner replace the Senior Planner, position number 
PLN1327-001, line item 0000101.116.00000.558.600.1327. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 



 BENTON COUNTY CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 
11/16 PRINCIPAL PLANNER PAGE 1  
 

TITLE:   Principal Planner 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Planning 
 
REPORTS TO:   Planning Manager 
 
FLSA:   Exempt  
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Performs advanced level professional planning and supervisory work.  Coordinates the 
planning and implementation of assigned land use control programs; administers local, 
state, and federal land use ordinance.  Processes applications for zoning changes and 
permits.  Performs duties of Current and Long-Range Planning. 
 
 
EXAMPLES OF JOB DUTIES:  (Any one position may not include all of the duties listed nor do 
the listed examples include all tasks which may be found in positions of this class.) 
 
Prepares, reviews and analyzes applications for short plats, subdivisions, special 
permits, and variances to ensure administration and enforcement of existing zoning 
ordinance and code.   
 
Develops procedures for the review of applications. 
 
Develops staff reports and recommendations regarding applications.   
 
Collects data and develops information to support recommendations.  
 
Presents information to Planning Commission or Board of Adjustment. 
 
Prepares minimum legal notifications. 
 
Plans and attends or conducts public meetings and hearings with individuals and 
groups; makes presentations regarding department activities and decisions.  
 
Responds to questions from the public regarding land use regulations. 
 
Interprets land use ordinances and recommends appropriate applications and actions to 
resolve problems and proposals. 
 
Participates in updating the County Comprehensive Plan and associated land use 
ordinance. 
 
Coordinates and supervises assigned portions of the Plan. 
 
Plans, researches, and develops regular and special reports and summaries regarding 
assigned projects.   



 BENTON COUNTY CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 
11/16 PRINCIPAL PLANNER PAGE 2  
 

 
Supervises or develops and updates maps as necessary relating to land use 
applications.  
 
Performs site review and field investigations to analyze applications, proposals, or  
Complaints and takes photos for presentations. 
 
Assists in day-to-day administration of planning activities; participates in hiring new 
planning staff. 
 
Communicates with customers and applicants to explain the County planning policies, 
general planning principles, development standards, regulations, policies and 
procedures, planning case law, and long term visions for the County. 
 
Performs other related duties as assigned. 
 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 
 
Work is performed in an office setting or in the field.  Driving in varying weather 
conditions may be required. 
 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 
Knowledge of the principles, practices, and techniques used in land use planning. 
 
Knowledge of local, state, and federal laws related to land use planning. 
 
Knowledge of geography, demographic, and development pattern of Benton County and 
its surroundings. 
 
Ability to research, analyze, and interpret data collected in the field and changes in 
planning related law. 
 
Ability to read and interpret maps, photographs, and legal descriptions. 
 
Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in writing at all levels of government 
and in front of large groups. 
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other employees 
and the general public. 
 
Ability to prepare comprehensive reports, materials, and maps. 
 
Ability to exhibit excellent written and oral communication skills to explain policies and 
procedures and to work with other employees, department heads and agencies using 
courtesy, tact and good judgement. 
 



 BENTON COUNTY CLASSIFICATION DESCRIPTION 
11/16 PRINCIPAL PLANNER PAGE 3  
 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE: 
 
Bachelor's degree in Planning or related field and five years planning experience; or any 
combination of education and experience which would provide the applicant with the 
desired skills, knowledge and ability required to perform the job. 
 
 
LICENSES, CERTIFICATES & OTHER REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Valid Washington State Driver's License 



WEH
Text Box
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 105-101, Dept. 000







AGENDA ITEM 
MTG. DATE: November 22, 2016 
SUBJECT: Renewal of Hearings 
Examiner Contract for 2017 
MEMO DATE: November 10, 2016 
Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed By: Clark A. Posey 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  
Other    

Consent Agenda X 
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Board of County Commissioners on October 28, 2014, replaced the Board of 
Adjustment with a Hearings Examiner as the party responsible for making decisions on 
various permits, decisions and appeals. The Board signed a Hearing Examiner Personal 
Services Contract (Contract) with Susan E. Drummond, PLLC on November 17, 2015 
which expires on December 31, 2016. The Benton County Planning Department 
contacted Ms. Drummond with regards to the expiration of the Contract and she 
responded by stating that she would be willing to renew the said Contract with Benton 
County for the 2017 year. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Contract for Hearings Examiner services expires on December 31, 2016.  Ms. 
Drummond has communicated her willingness to renew the Contract with Benton County 
for the 2017 year serving as the Benton County Hearings Examiner. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the Planning Department's recommendation that the Board of County Commissioners 
sign the Contract with Susan Elizabeth Drummond, PLLC for the 2017 year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
For the 2017 Contract year the compensation for the performance of services for the 
Hearings Examiner as shown in Exhibit B will remain the same. 
 
MOTION 
A motion to approve the attached Hearing Examiner Personal Services Contract with 
Susan Elizabeth Drummond, PLLC for the 2017 year. 

WEH
Text Box
m. Contract w/S Drummond for Hearings Examiner Services



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

BEFORE THE BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS IN THE MATTER OF 
COUNTY PLANNING RE:  A PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH SUSAN ELIZABETH 
DRUMMOND, PLLC, TO PROVIDE HEARINGS EXAMINER SERVICES FOR THE 2017 
YEAR. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners on October 28, 2014, adopted 
Ordinances which replaced the Board of Adjustment with a Hearings Examiner as the 
party responsible for making decisions on various permits, decisions and appeals; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on November 17, 2015 a Hearing Examiner Services Contract with Susan 
Elizabeth Drummond, PLLC, was prepared and signed by the Board of County 
Commissioners commencing on January 1, 2016 and expiring on December 31, 2016; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, Susan Elizabeth Drummond was contacted by the Benton County Planning 
Department informing her that the Contract would expire on December 31, 2016 and 
asked if she would be willing to extend the contract for another year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Susan Elizabeth Drummond has indicated that she is willing to extend the 
contract for another year; THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2017 Personal Services Contract with Susan Elizabeth 
Drummond, PLLC for Hearings Examiner Services is effective January 1, 2017 and shall 
expire on December 31, 2017 unless extended for another year by written amendment 
by both parties; and THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the County agrees to compensate Ms. Drummond no more 
than $3500.00 per month for the year 2017. 
 
Dated this 22nd day of November 2016. 
 
                                       
 Chairman of the Board 
  
                                       
 Member 
 
                                       
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board CAP/djh 
Copy to PA’s Office 









































AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov 22, 2016 
Subject: Personal Service Agreement 

between Benton County and Boys & 
Girls Club of Benton and Franklin 
Counties for Prosser Teen Program 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 
Reviewed by:  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract   X 
Pass Resolution            X 
Pass Ordinance 
Pass Motion 
None  

Consent Agenda    X 
Public Hearing 
1st Discussion 
2nd Discussion 
Other  

SUMMARY 
Benton County would like to enter into a second service agreement with Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin 
Counties (“Contractor”) for the Prosser Teen Program Investment.  

For the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, Contractor shall be compensated in the amount 
of ninety thousand dollars ($90,000).  

Funding would support resources for personnel, supplies, training, field trips, and other miscellaneous expenses. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties were previously granted a contract with the County for the same 
program, but in order to maintain transparency and ease of reporting a new contract was drafted to continue once the 
1st amendment to the original contract (Resolution 2016-635) expires. Over the past three months of working with 
this program, there has been significant increase in teen involvement at the Prosser Club, with an average daily 
attendance of 22 teens in August and 25 in September. A total of 49 new members were registered as of September 
30, 2016. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 Sign the Resolution to accept proposed agreement
 Approve proposed agreement by signing all copies where indicated

FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the additional services as outlined in this amendment are provided by the Benton County Public Safety 
Tax. There is no impact on the current expense budget. All revenues and expenditures are from the Public Safety 
Tax Fund 0148-101. 

WEH
Text Box
n. Contract w/Boys & Girls Club for Prosser Teen Program Investment



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF BENTON AND 
FRANKLIN COUNTIES FOR PROSSER TEEN PROGRAM INVESTMENT 

WHEREAS, in August, 2014, the voters of Benton County approved Proposition 14-5, a 3/10 of 
one percent sales and use tax pursuant to RCW 82.14.450 to fund criminal justice and public safety 
programs in Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, funding decisions must fall within the parameters and guidance of the text of voter-
approve Proposition 14-5 where to “improve public safety and combat criminal gang activity and 

other crime by hiring additional police officers, corrections officers and prosecutors; continuing 

the Metro Drug Task Force; funding gang and crime prevention efforts; and funding court and 

clerk programs including a seventh Superior Court Judge; and drug and mental health courts”; 
and 

WHEREAS, funding gang and crime prevention efforts, the Benton County Gang and Crime 
Prevention and Intervention Initiative is to improve the quality of life for the residents of Benton 
County by reducing the incidence of gang-related and other crime in Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016 the Benton County Board of Commissioners approved funding 
for gang and crime prevention efforts, utilizing an Request for Proposal process; and 

WHEREAS, Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties proposed a Prosser Teen 
Program Investment in the annual amount of fifty-five thousand dollars ($55,000) for 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties has reapplied for consideration 
in the 2017 budget for an annual amount of ninety thousand dollars ($90,000); NOW, 
THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED the amount of ninety thousand dollars ($90,000), the 2017 annual budgeted 
amount, has been approved by the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED each monthly payment will be made payable to Boys & Girls 
Club of Benton and Franklin Counties, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement will start January 1, 2017. 



cc: Auditor; PA-Contract Compliance; Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties Faulconer 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . . 

Chairman of the Board 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

Member 

Attest:…………………………….. 
      Clerk of the Board Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 



- 1 - 

BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and Boys 

and Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties, with its principal 

offices at 801 N. 18th Ave., Pasco, WA 99301, (hereinafter 

"CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

This Contract consists of the following documents: 

a. Terms and Conditions (this document);

b. Exhibit A, Proposal Application;

c. Exhibit B, Progress Reporting and Measures; and

d. Exhibit C, Prosser Teen Program Investment (January-December

2017). 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT

The term of this Contract shall begin January 1, 2017, and shall 

expire on December 31, 2017. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 

services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 

otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

a. A detailed description of the services to be performed by the

CONTRACTOR is set forth in Exhibit "A, Scope of Work", which

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials.

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material,

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY.

c. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time

during the progress of the services performed. The CONTRACTOR

shall prepare and present status reports in the form of



- 2 - 

Exhibit B demonstrating services completed to date. 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

a. For CONTRACTOR:

Brian Ace 

801 N. 18th Ave 

Pasco, WA 99301 

Phone: (509)543-9980 

Email: brian.ace@kidexpert.org 

b. For COUNTY:

Shyanne Faulconer 

PO Box 190 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Phone: (509)786-3760 

Email: Shyanne.Faulconer@co.benton.wa.us 

5. COMPENSATION

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 

as follows: 

a. A detailed description of compensation to be paid by the

COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth

in Exhibit C, “Prosser Teen Program Investment” which is

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Accordingly, for the time period of January 1, 2017, through

December 31, 2017, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by COUNTY

in an amount not to exceed ninety thousand dollars ($90,000).

b. No payment shall be made for any services performed by the

CONTRACTOR, except for services identified and set forth in

this Contract.

c. The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more

than once per month during the progress of the services

performed for partial payment of the services completed to

date. The COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR in the month

following the actual delivery of services and will remit



- 3 - 

payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under

this Contract unless and until they have been performed to

the satisfaction of the COUNTY.

e. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR

under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within

ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY

may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the

CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to

the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to

perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated. "Substantial" for

the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the

terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or

minor omissions or defects.

f. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any

billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to

the execution of this Contract or after its termination.

6. AMENDMENTS

No amendment or modification shall be made to this 

Contract, unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment 

signed by both parties. Services performed under a Contract 

Amendment shall not proceed until the Contract Amendment is 

duly executed by the COUNTY. 

7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from

and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability,

loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature

whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in

defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to

persons or damage to property or business, which are caused

in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or

otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise

in connection with the services performed under this

Contract, or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors

or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of

the County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation



- 4 - 

hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or 

damage caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers,

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the

CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws,

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent

performing services hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under

this Section [7] shall survive termination and expiration of

this Contract.

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all

claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach

of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the

CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or

subcontractors.

8. INSURANCE

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations.

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of

or in connection with the performance of this Contract.

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage

from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to

commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR

waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for



- 5 - 

recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 

compensation and employers liability. 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 

such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract,

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury,

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any

actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by

anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR.

The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits

shall be as follows:

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 

an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 

contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 

pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 

[7]. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 

provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 

except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 



- 6 - 

or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 

first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 

insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 

insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto

(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired

(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of

not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident

for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR

from claims which may arise from the performance of this

Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by

anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.

d. Other Insurance Provisions:

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be

primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance

programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed

officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S

liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this

primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention,

deductible or risk retention maintained or participated

in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to

CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies.

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection

afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured.

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY,

its officers, officials, employees or agents.

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each

insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought,

except with respect to the limits of the insurer's



- 7 - 

liability. 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the

requirements stated herein.

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage

required by this Contract are not intended to be an

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits

than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits

maintained by the CONTRACTOR.

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in

force from the time services commence until services are

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly

replaced. All liability insurance required under this

Contract, shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect

to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract.

When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does

not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement

to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then

CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such

endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any

policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting

waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids

coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver

of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this

Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S

strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment

to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-

compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S

compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to

withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR.

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 

companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 



- 8 - 

State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least 

A-VII or better in the most recently published edition of 

Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and 284-15 WAC. 

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other

than Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall

specifically include the COUNTY, its elected officials,

employees and volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way

of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without

thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY. Any

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its

elected and appointed officials, employees and agents

shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall

not contribute to it.

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract

Representative referenced in Section 4.

3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice of

cancellation or change of required insurance coverages

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative

referenced in Section 4.

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any

and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon

request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the following

address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan

Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336.

9. TERMINATION

a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that

such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The

COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days

written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that

event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost

incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to

the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance

with the Compensation Section of this Contract.



- 9 - 

b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn,

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of

this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this

Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in

this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be

effective upon the date specified in the written notice of

termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the

effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall

be allowed.

c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder,

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written

notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately

terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in

which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the

costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with

the Compensation Section of this Contract.

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations

and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be

assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or

firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY.

b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than

a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any

fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other

consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or

making of this Contract.

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent,



- 10 - 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for

this Contract is set forth in Section [5] of this Contract,

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation

pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other

insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees.

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors,

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor,

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be

or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent,

or representative of the COUNTY.

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or

payments required by federal, state or local law which are

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract.

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do

so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee.

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 

local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 

14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

15. NONDISCRIMINATION

The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 

not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 

its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 



- 11 - 

sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 

honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 

any other protected status. 

16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED

a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the

performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works

for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and

shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to

copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer

these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials

prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those

intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it

agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the

extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR.

b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job

using the word processing program and version specified by

the COUNTY.

17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT

The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 

against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 

COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 

supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 

or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 

by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 

18. DISPUTES

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 

by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 

the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 

may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 

dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 

instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 

shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 

seek judicial relief. 

19. CONFIDENTIALITY



- 12 - 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 

shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 

the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 

Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 

an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 

20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is

agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be

governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to

its interpretation and performance.

b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and

maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction

in Benton County, Washington.

21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

22. SEVERABILITY

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall

be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain

the particular provision held to be invalid.

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform

to such statutory provision.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT



- 13 - 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

24. NOTICES

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 

Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 

with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 

to be given three days following the date of mailing or 

immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 

service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 

day. 

25. SURVIVABILITY

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, 

indemnification provisions (Sections [7] and [17]); inspection and 

keeping of records and books (Section [14]); litigation hold notice 

(Section [26]); Public Records Act (Section [27]) and 

confidentiality (Section [19]). 

26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section [14] of this 

agreement may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out 

above in Section [14]. 

27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 



- 14 - 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 

such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 

of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 

release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 

agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 

timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 





PROPOSAL APPLICATION FOR PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS SUPPORTING THE 
BENTON COUNTY GANG AND CRIME PREVENTION INITIATIVE 

Name of Your Organization: 

Title of Program or Project: 

Executive summary of program or project: (100 words or less) 

Purpose, vision, or mission of your organization: (200 words or less) 

Purpose and need for the program or project. Please include current and historic challenges, opportunities, 
or issues that the program/project seeks to address. (400 words or less) 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A



PROPOSAL APPLICATION FOR PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS SUPPORTING THE 
BENTON COUNTY GANG AND CRIME PREVENTION INITIATIVE 

Detailed program or project description. Include need, origins, phases, partners and their roles, and a 
timeline. (500 words or less) 

Similar work your organization has done previously. (300 words or less) 

 

 



PROPOSAL APPLICATION FOR PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS SUPPORTING THE 
BENTON COUNTY GANG AND CRIME PREVENTION INITIATIVE 

Please list and describe any previous grants received, projects or programs conducted on behalf of or for 
government agencies, or public-private partnerships entered into. 

 



Exhibit B: Progress Reporting & Measures 

Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton & Franklin Counties 
801 N. 18th Ave. 
Pasco, WA 99301 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 

STATUS SUMMARY 

MEASURABLES PROGRESS TO DATE 
Enroll at least 75 teen members by 
12/31/2017. 

Maintain average daily attendance (ADA) of at 
least 12 teens per day during summer program 
months. (June –Aug) 

Maintain average daily attendance (ADA) of at 
least 25 teens per day during school-year 
program months (Jan–Dec excluding June-Aug) 

Teens attend Boys & Girls Club at least 2 days 
per week, on average each month during 
school-year program months. 

Serve 5 Other Youth Served (Non-Club Teens) a 
month, at teen centered Club events (Jan-Dec) 

Furniture items delivered by 9/30/2017 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 
TOTAL BUDGET INVOICED REMAINING BUDGET 

Personnel 

Operating Budget 

Signature Date 

Progress Report 



Exhibit C

Description

Executive Director 1 hour per week x $45 per hour 45.00$             
Branch & Program Director Administrative oversight 14 hrs per week x $25 per hour 350.00$           
Director of Operations 2 hours per week x $30 per hour 60.00$             
Director of Finance 1 hour per week X $25 per hour 25.00$             
Teen Coordinator Planning, preparing, & implementing programs 35 hrs per week x $14 per hour 490.00$           
Program Support Staff 30 hrs per week x $12 per hour 360.00$           

Subtotal: 1,330.00$        
Benefit Allocation 15% (PT and FT average) 199.50$           

Weekly Expense 1,529.50$        
Total Personnel Expenses (52 weeks): 79,534.00$     

Program Supplies Average of $275 per month x 12 months to run a variety of teen programs 3,300.00$        
Participation incentives $100 per month x 12 months 1,200.00$        
Teen Late Nights $200 per event x 24 events per year 4,800.00$        
Snacks 22 Youth per month X $1.00 X 250 days 5,500.00$        
Office Supplies $15 per month 75.00$             

Supply Expenses: 14,875.00$     

Furniture Furniture for program spaces 1,500.00$        
Field Trip Expense Experiental learning opportunities 5,000.00$        
Fuel for Field Trips $40 per month x 12 months 480.00$           
Staff Training Staff development and program training 1,500.00$        
Program Curriculum Prevention program curriculum and various sets from Boys & Girls Clubs of America 1,500.00$        
Rent $100 per month X 12 months 1,200.00$        
Utilities Monthly utilities $700 per month x 12 months 8,400.00$        
Printing and Postage $10 per month x 12 months 120.00$           

Other Expenses: 19,700.00$     

Expense Total:  114,109.00$    

Brian Ace, Executive Director: brian.ace@kidexpert.org
Andrea Locati, Director of Operations: andrea@kidexpert.org
Dena Lodahl, Branch Director: dena.lodahl@kidexpert.org

Other

Personnel Expenses
Item

Prosser Teen Program Investment (January  ‐ December 2017)

Supplies

For inquiries please contact:

The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties appreciates the consideration of a $90,000 investment in the Prosser Teen Program. An investment of $90,000 will 
support 79% of the total cost of Teen Program implementation and operation at the Prosser Boys & Girls Club.



WEH
Text Box
o. Coding Corrections, Dept. 138









WEH
Text Box
p. Coding Corrections, Dept. 138









WEH
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650





WEH
Text Box
r. Purchase from Northend Truck Equipment, Inc. for Specialized Parts





WEH
Text Box
s. Purchase of Ford Escape from Corwin Ford Tri-Cities









WEH
Text Box
t. Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Big D’s Construction



WEH
Text Box
u. Acceptance of Contractor’s Work Performed by Premier Excavation



WEH
Text Box
v. Payment to Cascade Software Systems, Inc. for Programming Services





WEH
Text Box
w. Purchase from House of Automotive Parts & Paint for Tooling Equipment







































WEH
Text Box
x. Contract w/Roadtech, Inc. for Crushing Demonstration Project on Missimer Road



















































































































WEH
Text Box
y. Purchase from Mohawk Resources LTD for Hunter Alignment System





















































































































































WEH
Text Box
z. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120







AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: November 22, 2016    
Subject: Service Contract w/ 
Mel's Inter City Towing 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: R. Lukson  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__   
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           _X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

In previous years the County has contracted with Mel’s Inter City Towing for evidentiary vehicles and 
disabled county vehicles tows. 

The BCSO and Road’s Department has been pleased wit h their services and recommends entering into 
another service contract for 2017-2018 for as needed towing services for a contract amount not to exceed 
$20,000 including WSST.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Contract amount up to $20,000 with said funds being paid out of the appropriate departments of who utilize 
the services and said expenditures were included in the 2017-2018 budget process.   

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
aa. Contract w/Mel’s Inter City Collision, Inc. for Towing Services



Original: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; PA; Mel’s Inter City Towing   Small  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF A PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY 
AND MEL’S INTER CITY COLLISION, INC. DOING BUSINESS AS MEL’S INTER CITY 
TOWING FOR EVIDENTIARY VEHICLE TOWS AND TOWS OF DISABLED COUNTY 
VEHICLES  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677, Section 4.0 Services “the County need not advertise or 
follow a formal competitive bidding procedure for service contracts, bu t rather the county ma y 
instead evaluate and utilize the procedures it de ems best under the individual circumstances in 
order to obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and  
  
WHEREAS, in previous years the Sheriff’s Office has contracted with Mel’s Inter City Towing for 
evidentiary vehicles and disabled county vehicles tows; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office is happy with the se rvices that Mel’s Inter City Towing has 
provided and recommends entering into another contract for the calendar year of 2017 and 2018; 
NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commission ers concurs with the  
recommendation and hereby awards the personal service contract to Mel’s Inter City Collision, 
Inc. dba/ Mel’s Inter City Towing for evidentiary vehicle tows and disabled county vehicle tows for 
a contract amount not to exceed $20,000 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall 
terminate December 31, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
Dated this ___________ day of ___________________ , 2016 
 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

         
             

                Member 
          

 
             

                Member 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 



 
- 1 - 

  
BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
  
 
THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 
COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 
Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and MEL’S 
INTER CITY COLLISION, INC., doing business as MEL’S INTER CITY 
TOWING, a for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Washington with its principal office at 310 N. Dayton 
Street, Kennewick, WA 99336 (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows:              
 
1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
This Contract consists of the following documents: 

 
a. Terms and Conditions (this document) 
 
2.  DURATION OF CONTRACT 
 
The term of this Contract shall begin January 1, 2017 and shall 
expire on December 31, 2018.  The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 
work by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 
otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. Upon mutual 
agreement of both parties, the original terms and conditions of 
the contract may be extended for up to two (2) additional 12-month 
periods.  
 
3.  SERVICES PROVIDED 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to tow vehicles on an “as needed” basis.  

The vehicle tows will consist only of tows of vehicles 
necessary for evidentiary purposes in an investigation 
conducted by the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, and tows of 
disabled vehicles belonging to Benton County.  

 
b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials.  

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 
labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY. 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work specified in this 

Contract according to standard industry practice. 
 



 
- 2 - 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall complete its work in a timely manner and 
in accordance with the schedule agreed by the parties. 

 
e. The COUNTY does not guarantee utilization of this Contract.  

The COUNTY may award contracts to other vendors for similar 
services.  Actual utilization will be based on availability, 
proximity of vendor facilities, pricing, or any other factors 
deemed important to the COUNTY.  

 
4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 
Each party to this Contract shall have a contract representative.  
Each party may change its representative upon providing written 
notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 
 
a. For CONTRACTOR:   Leigh Eayrs 
     310 N. Dayton Street 
     Kennewick, WA 99336 
     Phone: (509) 586-8383 
     Fax: (509) 586-6459 
 
b. For COUNTY:    Lisa Small, Contract Coordinator  
     Benton County Sheriff’s Office  
     7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
     Kennewick, WA 99336 
     Tel: (509) 735-6555 Ext. 3880 
     Fax: (509) 736-3895 
     Email: Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  

  
5. COMPENSATION 

 
For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 
as follows: 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid $50.00 for Class A towing of 

disabled COUNTY vehicles or evidence tows that are towed from 
within the Kennewick city limits.  Outside of the Kennewick 
city limits the CONTRACTOR shall be paid $50.00 plus mileage 
of $3.00 per towed mile from the vehicles location to a 
facility designated by the COUNTY.   

 
b. The maximum total amount payable by the COUNTY to the 

CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not exceed $20,000. 
 

c.  No payment shall be made for any work performed by the 
CONTRACTOR, except for work identified and set forth in this 
Contract. 



 
- 3 - 

 
d.  The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more 

than once per month. The COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for 
services rendered in the month following the actual delivery 
of work and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from 
the date of receipt. 

 
e. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under 

this Contract unless and until they have been performed to 
the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 

 
f. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 
under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within 
ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 
may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to 
the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to 
perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated.  "Substantial" for 
the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the 
terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or 
minor omissions or defects. 

 
g. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 
billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to 
the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 
6. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 
 
a. a. In the event of any errors or omissions by the CONTRACTOR 

in the performance of any work required under this Contract, 
the CONTRACTOR shall make any and all necessary corrections 
without additional compensation. All work submitted by the 
CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the CONTRACTOR and checked 
for errors and omissions. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible 
for the accuracy of the work, even if the work is accepted by 
the COUNTY.  

 
b. No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, 

unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by 
both parties. Work under a Contract Amendment shall not 
proceed until the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the 
COUNTY. 
 

7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION   
 
a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 



 
- 4 - 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from 
and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, 
loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature 
whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 
defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to 
persons or damage to property or business, which are caused 
in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 
otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise 
in connection with the work performed under this Contract, or 
are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by reason of the 
presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors or their 
property upon or in the proximity of the property of the 
County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation hereunder 
shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or damage caused 
by or arising out of the sole negligence of the COUNTY, its 
officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 
b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 
CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 
may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 
Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 
the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 
payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 
Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 
by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 
any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 
including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 
Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 
acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 
negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 
Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 
the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 
performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 
this Section 7 shall survive termination and expiration of 
this Contract. 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are 

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all 
claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach 
of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 
CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or 
subcontractors. 
 

8. INSURANCE   
  
a. Workers Compensation:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 



 
- 5 - 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 
compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 
CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-
subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 
(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of 
or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 
CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to 
commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR 
waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 
recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 
compensation and employers liability. 

 
If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 
comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 
statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 
required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 
such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 
Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 
legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 
behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 
CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 
deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 
performance of this Contract.  
 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 
Insurance:  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 
coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 
CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any 
actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by 
anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR. 
The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits 
shall be as follows: 
 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate 
$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The commercial general liability policy will contain an 
endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 
an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 
commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 
contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 



 
- 6 - 

COUNTY. 
 
The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 
coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 
in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 
pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 7. 
CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 
provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 
except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 
or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 
first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 
insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 
Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 
$1,000,000 Each Accident 
$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 
 

c. Automobile Liability:  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 
the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 
(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 
(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired 
(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident 
for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR 
from claims which may arise from the performance of this 
Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.  
 

d. On-Hook Towing Coverage: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, 
during the life of the Contract, On-Hook Towing coverage in 
the amount of not less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) 
per accident to cover the cost to replace or repair any 
damages that results from the CONTRACTOR’s towing or hauling 
of vehicles. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 
programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S 
liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 
primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 
deductible or risk retention maintained or participated 



 
- 7 - 

in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 
CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies. 

 
2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured.  

 
3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, 
its officers, officials, employees or agents.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each 

insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 
except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 
liability.  

 
5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 
certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 
coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein.  

 
6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 

required by this Contract are not intended to be an 
indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 
indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 
than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY 
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 
maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 
7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 

force from the time services commence until services are 
completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 
replaced. All liability insurance required under this 
Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.  

 
8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect 

to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. 
When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does 
not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement 
to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 
CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any 
policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting 
waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver 
of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  



 
- 8 - 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S 
strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment 
to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-
compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 
compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to 
withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR. 

 
e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   

 
 All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 

companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 
State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least 
A-VII or better in the most recently published edition of 
Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 
reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 
Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 
Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 
issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 
RCW and 284-15 WAC.  
  
1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 

than Professional Liability, Auto Liability and Workmen’s 
Compensation, shall specifically include the COUNTY, its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an 
“Additional Insured” by way of endorsement and shall not 
be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior notice to the COUNTY. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute to 
it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 4. 

 
3. All written notices under this Section 8 and notice of 

cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 
shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 
referenced in Section 4.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 

and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon 
request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the following 
address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan 
Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336.  

 



 
- 9 - 

9. TERMINATION 
 
a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that 
such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The 
COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days 
written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that 
event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost 
incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to 
the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance 
with the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 
b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of 
this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this 
Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in 
this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be 
effective upon the date specified in the written notice of 
termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the 
effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall 
be allowed. 

 
c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, 

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written 
notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately 
terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in 
which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the 
costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with 
the Compensation Section of this Contract. Upon such 
termination, the COUNTY, at its discretion, may obtain 
performance of the work elsewhere, and the CONTRACTOR shall 
bear all costs and expenses incurred by the COUNTY in 
completing the work and all damage sustained by the COUNTY by 
reason of the CONTRACTOR'S breach. 
  

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations 
and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 
assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or 
firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than 
a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any 
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 



 
- 10 - 

making of this Contract. 
 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 
 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 
or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 
a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 
the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 
this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 
this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 
action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 
employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 
specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 
own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 
with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 
b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section 5 of this Contract, and 
neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to any 
COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation pay, 
holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other 
insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or 
privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 
employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 
employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 
or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, 
or representative of the COUNTY. 

 
d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which are 
now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 
e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 
under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 
so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 
13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 



 
- 11 - 

local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 
 
14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 
The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 
of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 
The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 
request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 
for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration.  
 
15. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 
not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 
its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 
sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 
honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 
any other protected status. 
 
16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 
 
a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of 

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the 
performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works 
for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and 
shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to 
copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer 
these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials 
prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those 
intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it 
agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the 
extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 
b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be 

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job 
using the word processing program and version specified by 
the COUNTY. 
 

17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 
COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 
against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 
COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 
supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 
or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 
by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 
 



 
- 12 - 

18. DISPUTES 
 
Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 
by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 
the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 
may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 
dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 
and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 
COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 
instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 
shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 
seek judicial relief. 
 
19. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 
shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 
the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 
Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 
an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 
CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 
judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 

 
20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 
a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been 

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is 
agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to 
its interpretation and performance. 

 
b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 
maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction 
in Benton County, Washington. 
 

21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 
each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 
and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 
such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY 
 
a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole 



 
- 13 - 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 
not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 
be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain 
the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 
Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 
be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 
in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 
to such statutory provision. 

 
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 
its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 
understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 
excluded. 
 
24. NOTICES 
 
Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 
party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 
Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 
with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 
to be given three days following the date of mailing or 
immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 
service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 
day. 
 
25. SURVIVABILITY 

 
All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 
survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 
so survive.  These terms include, but are not limited to, 
indemnification provisions (Sections 7 and 17); inspection and 
keeping of records and books (Section 14); litigation hold notice 
(Section 26); Public Records Act (Section 27) and confidentiality 
(Section 19). 
 
26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 
 
In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 
increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 
records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section 14 of this agreement 
may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written notice 
to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the CONTRACTOR to 



 
- 14 - 

“hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR receives such 
written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all directions therein 
whether or not such written notice is received at a time when a 
Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in force. Such 
directions will include, but will not be limited to, instructions 
to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out above in 
Section 14. 
 
27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
 
CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 
entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 
Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 
that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 
required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 
this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 
possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 
as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 
provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 
or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 
such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 
of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 
release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 
agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 
timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 
which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 
as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 
judicial order of protection if necessary. 
 
 
 

- This section  intentionally left blank - 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 22, 2016    
Subject: Agreement w/Pronto 

Process Service, Inc. 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
  
The Sheriff’s Office, Prosecuting Attorney’s Office, District Court, and Office of Public Defense has a contract with 
Pronto Process Service, Inc. for process service  and delivery of legal documents, letters, packag es and materials 
to businesses throughout the Tri-City area.  
 
Departments wish to enter into another personal service contract with Pronto Process Service, Inc. for the calendar 
years of 2017 and 2018.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached  Resolution and Personal Service Contract betw een Benton County and Pronto Process 
Service, Inc. for service and delivery of legal documents, letters, packages, and materials to businesses throughout 
the Tri-City area. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
Ryan Lukson  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures shall be paid from each department utilizing this contract.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
bb. Contract w/Pronto Process Service, Inc. for Process Services



Orig:   Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, PA’s Office, Pronto  

 Prepared by:  L. Small 

 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING A PERSONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT TO PRONTO 
PROCESS SERVICE, INC. FOR PROCESS SERVICE AND DELIVERY OF LEGAL 
DOCUMENTS, LETTERS, PACKAGES, AND MATERIALS TO BUSINESSES 
THROUGHOUT THE TRI-CITY AREA FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE, 
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, DISTRICT COURT, AND OFFICE OF PUBLIC 
DEFENSE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677, Section 4.0 Services “the County need not advertise or follow 
a formal competitive bidding proce dure for service contracts, but rather the county ma y instead 
evaluate and utilize the procedures it d eems best under the individual circumstances in order to 
obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office, Prosecuting A ttorney’s Office, District Court, and Office of Public 
Defense has a contract with Pronto Process Service, Inc. for process service and delivery of legal 
documents, letters, packages and materials to businesses throughout the Tri-City area; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Count y Departments wish to  enter into a nother personal service  contract with 
Pronto Process Service, Inc. for the calendar years of 2017 and 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, a detailed description of the compensation to be paid by the County for the said services 
is set for in Exhibit B of the attached agreement; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington  
hereby approves the personal service contract between Benton County and Pronto Process Service, 
Inc. for service and delivery of lega l documents, letters, packages, and  materials to businesse s 
throughout the Tri-City area; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Bo ard to sign the 
attached personal service contract; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of th e attached personal service contract commen ces 
January 1, 2017 and expires on December 31, 2018. 
 
 
Dated this  _________ day of ___________________, 2016 
 
 ___________________________                          
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ___________________________               
 Member 
 
 
 ___________________________       
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 
                   Clerk of the Board 



 
- 1 - 

BENTON COUNTY 
PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
This Contract is made and entered into by and between BENTON 
COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 
Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 
PRONTO PROCESS SERVICE, INC., a Washington corporation with its 
principal offices at 114 N 5th Ave., Pasco, WA 99301 (hereinafter 
"CONTRACTOR"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 
This Contract consists of the following documents: 
 
a. Terms and Conditions (this document) 
b. Exhibit A – Scope of Work 
c. Exhibit B – Compensation  
 
2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 
 
The term of this Contract shall begin January 1, 2017 and shall 
expire on December 31, 2018. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 
work by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 
otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. 
 
3. SERVICES PROVIDED 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide for delivery and receipt of 

all legal documents, letters, packages, and materials to/from 
the COUNTY departments listed in Exhibit A for delivery and 
receipt to/from attorney, businesses, and residences 
throughout the Tri-City area and service of process 
throughout Southeastern Washington in accordance with Exhibit 
A.  
 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 
Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 
labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY.  

 
c. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work specified in this 

Contract according to standard industry practice. 



 
- 2 - 

 
d. The CONTRACTOR shall complete its work in a timely manner and 

in accordance with the schedule agreed by the parties.  
 
e. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time 

during the progress of the work. The CONTRACTOR shall prepare 
and present status reports and other information that may be 
pertinent and necessary, or as may be requested by the COUNTY.  
 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 
 
Each party to this Contract shall have a contract representative. 
Each party may change its representative upon providing written 
notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 
 
a. For CONTRACTOR:  Mark A. Owens 

PO Box 1194 
Pasco, WA 99301 
Phone: (509) 547-1122 
Email: prontoprocessservice@gmail.com 
   

 
b. For COUNTY:   Lisa Small, Contract Coordinator  

    7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
Phone: (509) 735-6555 Ext. 3880 
Email: Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us 

 
 
5. COMPENSATION 
 
For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 
as follows: 
 
a. A detailed description of the compensation to be paid by the 

COUNTY for the services provided in Section 3.a. and in 
accordance with Exhibit A, is set forth in Exhibit B.  

 
b. No payment shall be made for any work performed by the 

CONTRACTOR, except for work identified and set forth in the 
Contract.  
 

c. The CONTRACTOR may, in accordance with Exhibits A and B submit 
invoices to the COUNTY departments cited in Exhibit A not 
more than once per month during the progress of the work for 
partial payment of the work completed to date.  All invoices 
sent to the Prosecutor’s Office shall separate out the Child 



 
- 3 - 

Support Division services from all other services provided. 
Invoices shall cover the time CONTRACTOR performed work for 
the COUNTY during the billing period.  The COUNTY department 
cited herein shall pay the CONTRACTOR for services rendered 
in the month following the actual delivery of work and will 
remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of 
receipt.  
 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under 
this Contract unless and until they have been performed to 
the satisfaction of the COUNTY.  
 

e. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 
substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 
under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within 
ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 
may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to 
the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to 
perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated.  "Substantial" for 
the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the 
terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or 
minor omissions or defects. 

 
g. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 
billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to 
the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 
6. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 

 
a. In the event of any errors or omissions by the CONTRACTOR in 

the performance of any work required under this Contract, the 
CONTRACTOR shall make any and all necessary corrections 
without additional compensation. All work submitted by the 
CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the CONTRACTOR and checked 
for errors and omissions. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible 
for the accuracy of the work, even if the work is accepted by 
the COUNTY.  

 
b. No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, 

unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by 
both parties. Work under a Contract Amendment shall not 
proceed until the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the 
COUNTY. 

  



 
- 4 - 

 
7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from 
and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, 
loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature 
whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 
defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to 
persons or damage to property or business, which are caused 
in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 
otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise 
in connection with the work performed under this Contract, or 
are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by reason of the 
presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors or their 
property upon or in the proximity of the property of the 
County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation hereunder 
shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or damage caused 
by or arising out of the sole negligence of the COUNTY, its 
officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 
b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 
CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 
may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 
Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 
the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 
payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 
Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 
by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 
any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 
including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 
Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 
acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 
negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 
Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 
the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 
performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 
this Section 7 shall survive termination and expiration of 
this Contract. 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are 

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all 
claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach 
of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 



 
- 5 - 

CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or 
subcontractors. 

 
8. INSURANCE  
 
a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 
Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 
compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 
CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-
subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 
(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of 
or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 
CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to 
commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR 
waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 
recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 
compensation and employers liability. 

 
If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 
comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 
statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 
required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 
such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 
Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 
legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 
behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 
CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 
deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 
performance of this Contract.  
 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 
Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 
coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 
CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any 
actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by 
anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR. 
The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits 
shall be as follows: 
 
 
 
 



 
- 6 - 

 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate 
$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The commercial general liability policy will contain an 
endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 
an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 
commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 
contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 
COUNTY. 
 
The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 
coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 
in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 
pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 7. 
CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 
provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 
except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 
or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 
first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 
insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 
Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 
$1,000,000 Each Accident 
$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 
 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 
the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 
(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 
(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired 
(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident 
for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR 
from claims which may rise from the performance of this 
Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.  

  



 
- 7 - 

 
d. Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 
programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S 
liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 
primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 
deductible or risk retention maintained or participated 
in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 
CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies. 

 
2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured.  

 
3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, 
its officers, officials, employees or agents.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each 

insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 
except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 
liability.  

 
5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 
certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 
coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein.  

 
6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 

required by this Contract are not intended to be an 
indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 
indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 
than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY 
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 
maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 
7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 

force from the time services commence until services are 
completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 
replaced. All liability insurance required under this 
Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.  

 



 
- 8 - 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect 
to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. 
When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does 
not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement 
to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 
CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any 
policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting 
waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver 
of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S 
strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment 
to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-
compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 
compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to 
withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR. 

 
e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:  

 
All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 
companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 
State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least 
A-VII or better in the most recently published edition of 
Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 
reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 
Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 
Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 
issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 
RCW and 284-15 WAC.  
  
1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 

than Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall 
specifically include the COUNTY, its elected officials, 
employees and volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way 
of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without 
thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its 
elected and appointed officials, employees and agents 
shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall 
not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 4. 



 
- 9 - 

 
3. All written notices under this Section 8 and notice of 

cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 
shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 
referenced in Section 4.  

 
4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 

and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon 
request of the Benton County Risk Manager. 
 

9. TERMINATION 
 
a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that 
such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The 
COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days 
written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that 
event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost 
incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to 
the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance 
with the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 
b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of 
this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this 
Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in 
this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be 
effective upon the date specified in the written notice of 
termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the 
effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall 
be allowed. 

 
c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, 

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written 
notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately 
terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in 
which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the 
costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with 
the Compensation Section of this Contract. Upon such 
termination, the COUNTY, at its discretion, may obtain 
performance of the work elsewhere, and the CONTRACTOR shall 
bear all costs and expenses incurred by the COUNTY in 
completing the work and all damage sustained by the COUNTY by 
reason of the CONTRACTOR'S breach. 

 
 
 



 
- 10 - 

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations 
and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 
assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or 
firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than 
a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any 
fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 
making of this Contract. 

 
11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 
 
The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 
or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 
a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 
the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 
this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 
this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 
action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 
employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 
specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 
own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 
with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 
b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section 5 of this Contract, and 
neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to any 
COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation pay, 
holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other 
insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or 
privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

  



 
- 11 - 

 
c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 
employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 
employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 
or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, 
or representative of the COUNTY. 

 
d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which are 
now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 
e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 
under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 
so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 
13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 
 
14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 
The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 
of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 
The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 
request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 
for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration.  
 
15. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 
not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 
its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 
sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 
honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 
any other protected status. 
 
16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 
 
a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of 

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the 
performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works 
for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and 
shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to 
copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer 



 
- 12 - 

these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials 
prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those 
intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it 
agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the 
extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 
b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be 

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job 
using the word processing program and version specified by 
the COUNTY. 

 
17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 
COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 
against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 
COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 
supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 
or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 
by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 
 
18. DISPUTES 
 
Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 
by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 
the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 
may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 
dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 
and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 
COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 
instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 
shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 
seek judicial relief. 
 
19. CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 
shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 
the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 
Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 
an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 
CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 
judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 
 
20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 
a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been 



 
- 13 - 

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is 
agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to 
its interpretation and performance. 

 
b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 
maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction 
in Benton County, Washington. 

 
21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 
each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 
and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 
such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY 
 
a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole 
or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 
not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 
be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain 
the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 
Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 
be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 
in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 
to such statutory provision. 

 
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 
its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 
understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 
excluded. 
 
24. NOTICES 
 
Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 
party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 
Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 



 
- 14 - 

with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 
to be given three days following the date of mailing or 
immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 
service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 
day. 
 
25. SURVIVABILITY 
 
All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 
survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 
so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, 
indemnification provisions (Sections 7 and 17); inspection and 
keeping of records and books (Section 14); litigation hold notice 
(Section 26); Public Records Act (Section 27) and confidentiality 
(Section 19). 
 
26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 
 
In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 
increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 
records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section 14 of this agreement 
may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written notice 
to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the CONTRACTOR to 
“hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR receives such 
written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all directions therein 
whether or not such written notice is received at a time when a 
Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in force. Such 
directions will include, but will not be limited to, instructions 
to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out above in 
Section 14. 
 
27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
 
CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 
entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 
Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 
that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 
required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 
this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 
possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 
as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 
provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 
or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 
such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 
of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 
release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 
agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 



 
- 15 - 

timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 
which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 
as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 
judicial order of protection if necessary. 
 

- This sections was intentionally left blank -  

  







  

 

EXHIBIT A- SCOPE OF WORK 
 

1.0 PURPOSE:  
 

1.1 The COUNTY, by and through the below departments, requires the professional 
services of CONTRACTOR for delivery and receipt of legal documents to/from 
attorneys, businesses, and individuals throughout the Tri-City area and service of 
process throughout  Southeastern Washington, 

 
1.2 The following COUNTY departments will be serviced by this Contract: 

 
a. Benton County Sheriff's Office 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. 
A Kennewick, WA 99338  
(509) 735-6555 Ext. 3273 
Contact Person: Linda Ivey 

 
b. District Court 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 735-8476 Ext. 3255  
Contact Person: Jacki Lahtinen 

 
c. Prosecuting Attorney's Office  

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. 
A Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 735-3591 Ext. 3341 
Contact Person: Margaret Ault 

   
  d. Office of Public Defense  
   7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 
   Kennewick, WA 99336 
   (509) 222-3750 
   Contact Person: Denise Gerry 
 

1.3 Additional COUNTY departments may be added at a future date should other 
COUNTY departments require messenger service by providing written notice of 
the same to the CONTRACTOR.  Service to additional COUNTY departments 
will be accommodated via an Amendment to the Contract in accordance with 
Section 6 of the Personal Services Contract Terms and Conditions. 

 
2.0 SERVICES PROVIDED: 
 

2.1 LEGAL MESSENGER PICK-UP/DELIVERY: The CONTRACTOR shall pick 
up legal documents, letters, packages, and materials from the COUNTY departments 
identified in Section 1.2 above for delivery to attorneys, businesses, and residences 
throughout the Tri-City area. Legal documents will also be delivered to the 
COUNTY departments identified in Section 1.2 from other locations throughout 



  

the Tri-City area. 
 

2.2 PROCESS   SERVICES.   The   CONTRACTOR   shall   pickup   legal   process 
(summons, complaint, petitions, orders, etc.)  from  the  COUNTY  department 
identified in Section 1.2(c) for service throughout Southeastern Washington. 
Process service may involve contact with angry or hostile individuals. Service may 
include but not be limited to the following locations: personal residences, 
municipal police stations, correctional institutions, mental health facilities, 
substance abuse treatment facilities, and other medical sites such as hospitals or 
rehabilitation facilities. 

 
2.2.1 The CONTRACTOR will complete process service in a cost effective 

manner and within ten days from the date of receipt unless otherwise 
approved by the department cited herein. 

 
2.2.2 Upon successful completion of process service, the CONTRACTOR will 

prepare and transmit an affidavit of service or similar type of 
documentation demonstrating successful service or attempts at service to 
the requesting COUNTY department using proper legal format. 

 
2.3 OTHER   SERVICES   AND OBLIGATIONS.   The CONTRACTOR  shall  also 

provide the following service requirements, which may apply to messenger or 
service tasks: 

 
2.3.1 Provide service during non-business hours, including weekends and 

evenings at the same rate as service provided during business hours. 
 

2.3.2 All documents will be considered to be time sensitive, and the 
CONTRACTOR's performance shall be reviewed as to timeliness of 
response and ability to meet legal deadlines. Failure to meet a service 
or filing deadline may be cause for immediate suspension or termination 
of this Contract. 

 
2.3.3 At the request of the COUNTY, and at the discretion of the departments 

cited herein, the CONTRACTOR may provide additional services such as 
photographs, unofficial translations (both written and verbal) and other 
services. These services will be billed by the CONTRACTOR at $35.00 
per hour and cost of materials as needed and will be billed by written 
invoice to the requesting department in accordance with Section 5 of the 
Contract. 

 
3.0 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

3.1 NO GUARANTEED QUANTITIES. The CONTRACTOR understands and 
acknowledges that the COUNTY makes no representations nor guarantees the 
CONTRACTOR any minimum or maximum number of units of service to be 
provided under the Contract. 

 

 



  

3.2 SUBJECT TO PRIOR APPROVAL. This Agreement shall be subject to the 
written approval of the elected official, administrator, or director for each 
Department identified in Section 1.2 above, and by the Board of County 
Commissioners for Benton County. This Agree ment shall not be binding until 
so approved. 



 

 

EXHIBIT B- COMPENSATION 
 
1.0 MONTHLY FEES 
 

1.1 The COUNTY, by and through each of the departments serviced by this 
Contract, will pay a flat monthly fee to the CONTRACTOR for delivery and 
receipt of legal documents to/from attorneys, business, and individuals 
throughout the Tri-city  area as follows: 

 
Department Monthly Fee 

District Court $60.00
Benton County Sheriff's Office $60.00
Prosecuting Attorney's Office $35.00 for Prosecutor's Office, $25.00 for

Child Support Division 
Office of Public Defense  $60.00

 

1.2 CONTRACTOR will submit a separate invoice on a monthly basis to each of 
the County departments identified in Section 1.1 above, and in accordance with 
Section 5 of the Personal Services Contract Terms and Conditions.  All invoices 
sent to the Prosecutor's Office shall separate out the Child Support Division 
services from all other services provided. 

 
2.0 SERVICE OF PROCESS FEE:   
 
 This fee is in addition to the monthly fee cited in Section 1.1 above.  If the same 

respondent is served with process related to multiple matters CONTRACTOR agrees 
to charge only one process service fee as to that respondent. 

 
A. Process Service Fee:                                                                                           $35.00 

 
 
3.0 ADDITIONAL CHARGES FOR SERVICE:    
 

These fees are in addition to the base fee cited in Section 1.0 above, and service fees 
provided for in Section 2.0 above. 

 
A. Mileage for process service outside Benton/Franklin/Walla Walla Counties:  $  .45  

 
(Service in Benton/Franklin/Walla Walla Counties will be provided without a charge for 
mileage.  For all services outside those counties CONTRACTOR shall be paid the above 
rate to be calculated from the nearest location outside the respective county line to the 
location of service.  CONTRACTOR agrees to seek prior approval for all mileage 
expenses from the department representative listed in Section 1.2 of Exhibit A prior to 
incurring any mileage expenses.  Failure of CONTRACTOR to seek, and be granted, 
approval for mileage expenses prior to said expenses being incurred will result in no 
financial obligation by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for those expenses.) 

 
B. Attempted Deliveries to Bad Address/Relocation:                                              $15.00 
 



 

 
 
C. Same Day Deliveries: 

 
D. Other services requested by departments: 

(Such service includes photographs,   
unofficial   translations   (both written   and   
verbal)   and   other   services. Provided at 
$35.00 per hour plus cost of materials.) 

 $10.00 
 

 $35.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WEH
Text Box
cc. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123









WEH
Text Box
dd. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123









WEH
Text Box
ee. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 to 123







WEH
Text Box
ff. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138







WEH
Text Box
gg. Agreement Extension w/The Master’s Touch for Printing/Mailing Property Tax Statements











WEH
Text Box
Board Assignments for 2017 ~ Commissioners






	CA - Commissioners d.pdf
	Resolution
	Form


	Name of Your Organization: Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties
	Title of Program or Project: Prosser Teen Program 2017
	Executive summary of program or project: We will enhance and expand Teen programming at the Prosser Branch of the Boys & Girls Club.  This includes the County contracting with Boys & Girls Club for staffing, supplies, and equipment in order to expand services to at-risk youth in the community.
	Organization Mission/Vision/Purpose: The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties are committed to empowering all young people, especially those who need us most, to reach their full potential as productive, caring, responsible citizens. The Boys & Girls Clubs have been providing services to youth in the Tri-Cities area since the fall of 1996. The organization now offers 13 locations throughout Benton and Franklin Counties; these include four traditional drop-in Clubs, six afterschool childcare locations at Pasco elementary schools, a preschool, and two teen parenting partnerships. Consistent with our organizational values of Respect, Integrity, Stewardship, and Passion for Youth, we provide a broad range of programs and activities focused on our priority outcomes of Academic Success, Healthy Lifestyles, and Good Character and Citizenship.
	Purpose and need for the program/project: The Prosser Park Branch of the Boys & Girls Club first opened their doors in 2010 and currently serves school-aged youth in Prosser and surrounding communities. Every year the Prosser Club has seen its teen population of middle school and high school students increase. Currently the Club serves an average of 25 teens each and every day at the satellite Teen Center located in facilities leased from First Baptist Church in Prosser. In addition to building renovations, the Prosser Park Branch is seeking funding from the BCGCP Initiative to support the effective expansion of Teen Program services. Youth in the Prosser community need a stable support system that will be there for them during not only academic hardships, but during other times of need as well. Youth and teens often become involved in gang activity or other risky behaviors in search of a source of stability in their lives. The Club prides itself on providing youth with a sense of Belonging, Usefulness, Influence, and Competence.  These are the very things that gangs provide, and the Club has positioned itself as a positive alternative to gang involvement.  The Boys & Girls Club has the ability to provide teens with a place that offers stability but in a positive and productive way. It is imperative that the Club provide these teens that need us most with the tools and resources necessary for them to become positive, productive members of society. Funding for the Prosser Club’s Teen Program will support the cost of staffing, staff training, increasing program services, and will provide Prosser teens with more experiential learning opportunities. Prosser’s Teen Program will provide teens with a positive and productive after school alternative to staying home alone or participating in risky behaviors. Between 3 PM and 7 PM, the hours immediately following school dismissal, are when juvenile crime, delinquency, and violence peak. The expansion of Prosser Club’s Teen Program will be able to provide local teens with a fun, safe, and productive environment that will foster the holistic growth and development of teens during a vital part of their adolescence.
	Program/Project Description: The Teen Program at the Prosser Park Branch, provided with the necessary resources, has the unique potential to provide local teens with a variety of fun and engaging opportunities for learning and growth. Support from the BCGCP Initiative would support significant expansion of program services to teens throughout the Prosser community. All activities and programs offered by the Boys & Girls Club are focused around the organization’s three priority outcomes of Academic Success, Healthy Lifestyles, and Good Character & Citizenship. Teen Program expansion would allow for program staff to receive training on how to more effectively implement quality programming, and would increase the variety of valuable program opportunities offered at the Prosser Club. The Club will also have the increased capacity to provide more teen late-night events throughout the year and an increased number of experiential learning field trips exclusively for teens. Teens will have the opportunity to participate in many leadership and volunteer programs to develop skills and grow in ways they may not be able to in a traditional school setting. A few of these programs include Keystone Club: a teen-led community service club, Youth of the Year: the Club’s premier recognition and scholarship program developing public speaking, writing, and interviewing skills, CareerLaunch: a career exploration program, and Junior Staff: a program empowering teens to become leaders within their Club community. Program expansion will allow for Club staff to be formally trained to implement programs through the Boys & Girls Clubs of America and other prevention programs through other organizations. In addition to formal training, the Prosser Club would also be able to purchase their own sets of program curriculum and have them promptly available for use. Funding from the BCGCP Initiative would also allow for Prosser teens to participate in more experiential learning field trips both locally and throughout the Pacific Northwest. These field trips will include local and regional college tours, career exploration field trips throughout the community, and other fun trips as program incentives. Late-night Club events after hours serve as a great way for local youth to build relationships and spend their evenings in a safe and productive environment. 
	Similar Work: Funding from the Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention Initiative (BCGCP Initiative) would support the cost of serving low-income youth at the Music & Arts Center in Kennewick and support program expansion for local teens at the Club branch in Prosser. The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties serves nearly 2,400 youth annually, over 60% of which are low-income youth. On any given day our Clubs are positively impacting the lives of over 700 local youth by providing them with a variety of unique, fun, and engaging programming. Programs implemented at the Boys & Girls Club include prevention programming, education enrichment, healthy lifestyle activities, and civic engagement programs. A survey from Fight Crime: Invest in Kids demonstrated that afterschool programs are absolutely essential to preventing crime; nine out of ten police chiefs agreed with the statement: “If America does not make greater investments in afterschool and child care programs to help children and youth now, we will pay far more later in crime, welfare, and other costs.” In the United States, on average, the cost of incarceration can cost over $400 per youth per day.  A recent study from the University of Michigan found that for every $1 invested in Boys & Girls Clubs nearly $10 worth of economic benefits are returned to communities and society. Our Traditional Drop-In Club locations serve a high proportion of at-risk and low-income youth and teens that rely on the Club for holistic support. Investments in Boys & Girls Clubs alleviate societal costs such as healthcare, public assistance, and incarceration; an investment through the BCGCP Initiative would allow for the Boys & Girls Club to continue empowering youth along their journey to reaching their full potential. 
	Previous Grants Received: The organization has extensive experience in implementing grant-funded programs; staff members at the Club have well-rounded knowledge of how to implement various types of grants including those granted from government agencies, private and public foundations, corporate foundations, as well as small service organizations. Currently, the Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties implements prevention programming through a multi-year grant from the Benton Franklin Health District and the Washington State Department of Health. Other successful grant-funded programs currently implemented throughout the organization include a case management mentoring program through U.S. Department of Justice’s Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP) and the Boys & Girls Clubs of America (BGCA) and drug prevention programming for middle school-aged youth through the Washington State Department of Social and Health Services (DSHS). In addition to these large-scale grants, the organization also implements a variety of grant-funded programs through various corporations and regional service organizations. The Boys & Girls Club has the unique capacity to successfully implement many grant-funded programs through the efforts of the organization’s Grants & Outcomes Coordinator dedicated exclusively to grant writing, grant implementation, and program execution. The collaborative efforts of administrative staff members and Branch-level staff members all contribute to the success of implementing grant-funded programs and initiatives.


